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SUMMARY OF THE CASE

This | case is a garden variety boundary dispute between two lowa
citizens and cannot be characterized as a federal matter under Article III, §2
of the U.S. Constitution. The Dahlens allege a “taking” based ‘on City
approval of a site plan for Shelter House which contains a fifteen foot (15%)
strip of land to which they lay claim under Iowa state adverse possession
law. Without stating the basis for federal jurisdiction or the federally
protected -right violated, Plaintiffs’ First Amended Complaint seeks damages
and an injunction to prevent an alleged “taking” under 42 U.S.C. §1983. In
dismissing the complaint, the District Court first determined that the alleged
“taking” was for the valid public purpose of providing shelter to homeless
citizens, and therefore did not offend the U.S. Constitution. The District
~ Court correctly determined that Plaintiffé’ faiture to seek post-deprivation
redress through state inverse condemnation procedures deprived the federal
court of jurisdiction in this matter. As a basis for reversal, for the first time
on appeal, Plaintiffs now attempt to assert that lowa state law prevents the
alleged taking, and therefore the federal court should enjoin same.
Ultimately, as there is no legal basis for federal jurisdiction in this matter,
this appeal should be summarily dismissed by the Eighth Circuit without

opinion or oral argument.

i -
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STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

THE DISTRICT COURT CORRECTLY DISMISSED PLAINTIFFS’
FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR LACK OF FEDERAL
SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION.

A.

- Plaintiffs’ First Amended Complaint failed to plead the basis

for federal jurisdiction, a violation of the Iowa state constitution
or a violation of Iowa state law of eminent domain (Iowa Code
Chapter 6A) and this issue is being raised for the first time on
appeal.

Rule 8(a)(1), Federal Rules of Civil Procedure

Dep’t of Rec. & Sports of Puerto Rico v. World Boxing Ass’n,
942 F.2d 84 (1* Cir. 1991)

Seniority Research Group v. Chrysler Motor Corp., 976 F.2d
1185 (8™ Cir. 1992)

Singleton v. Wulff, 428 U.S.106 (1976)

Moad v. Arkansas State Police Department, 111 F.3d 585 (8"
Cir. 1997)

Stafford v. Ford Motor Co., 790 F.2d 706 (8" Cir. 1986)

Chapter 6A, Code of Towa

Plaintiffs’ alleged violation of lowa state law of eminent
domain (Iowa Code Chapter 6A) by and against lowa citizens
does not create a federal question upon which to premise

- federal jurisdiction; however, if federal jurisdiction exists, the

alleged taking does not offend the lowa or federal constitution.
28 U.S.C. §1343(a)(3)
Chapter 6A, Code of Iowa

Article III, §2, United States Constitution

vi
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Rule 12(b)(1), Federal Rules of Civil Procedur_e
Titus v. .Sullivan,-4 F.3d 590 (8™ Cir. 1993)

42 U.S.C. §1983

§6A.4(6), Code of Jowa

§6A.22(2)(a)(1)-(5), Code of Iowa

§427.1(8), Code of Iowa

§501(c)(3), Internal Revenue Code
§6A.22(2)(a)(3), Code of lowa

Simpson V. Low-fent Housing of Mt. Ayr, 224 N.W.2d 624
- (lowa 1974)

C.  Plaintiffs failed to. exhaust their administrative remedies by
seeking compensation for the alleged taking under Iowa state
inverse condemnation procedures as is necessary to confer
federal jurisdiction.

Article III, §2, United States Constitution

Christopher Lake Development Co. v. St. Louis County, 35
F.3d 1269 (8" Cir. 1994)

Koscielski v. City of Minneapolis, 435 F.3d 898 (8" Cir. 2006)

- Williamson County Reg’l Planning Comm’n v. Hamilton Bank,
473 U.S. 172 (1985)

Kingsway Cathedral v. Iowa Dept. of Transp., 711 N.W.2d 6
(Iowa 20006)

Harms v. City of Sibley, 702 N.W.2d 91 (Iowa 2005)

Vil
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Iowa Coal Mining Co. v. Monroe County, 555 N.W.2d 418
(Iowa 1996)

Von Kerssenbrock-Prachsma v. Sauhders, 121 F.3d 373 (8"
Cir. 1997)

Cormack v. Settle-Beshears, 474 F.3d 528 (8" Cir. 2007)
§6A.22, Code of Iowa
42 U.S.C. §1983

Clajon Production Corp. v. Petera, 70 F.3d 1566 (10™ Cir.
1995)

D.  Assuming a basis for federal jurisdiction, the federal court
should abstain from exercising jurisdiction in this matter as it is
a matter of first impression and is properly before the Iowa state
court. :

Younger v. Harris, 401 U.S. 37, 91 8.Ct. 746 (1971)

- Cormack v. Settle-Beshears, 474 F.3d 528 (8" Cir. 2007)
§6A.22, Code of Towa

Clay Reg’l Water v. City of Spirit Lake, Iowa, 193 F. Supp.2d
1129 (N.D. lowa 2002)

Capitol Indem. Corp. v. Haverfield, 218 F.3d 872 (8" Cir.
2000)

E.  The Rooker-Feldman doctrine applies to bar the Dahlens’
takings claim based on prior state court proceedings upholding
the special exception for the disputed property.

Bontrager Auto Service, Inc., et al. v. lowa City Board of
Adjustment, 748 N.W.2d 483 (Iowa 2008)

viii
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SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT
In their First Amended Complaint, the Dahlens asserted a claim under
42 U.S.C. §1983 for an alleged taking of a fifteen foot (15°) strip of property -
to which they lay claim under Iowa state adverse possession law. The
Dahlens assert that the approval of a site plan for the development of
B property owned by Shelter House affected this taking by including the
dispufed boundary area within the development site. However, the Dahlens’
complaint fails to state the basis for federal jurisdiction in this matter and
fails to aﬂege a violation of the federal constitution. Further, the Dahlens
raise the contention that this is an illegal taking under Iowa’s law of eminent
domain (Iowa Code Chapter 6A) for the first time in this appeal. Finally, the
-Dahlens’ assertion of a violation of Ioﬁa state condemnation law by and
- against lowa citizens does not create federal question jurisdiction.
Assuming federal jurisdiction, the district court found the alleged
taking did not offend the U.S. Constitution. Moreover, it is well-settled that
the federal court lacks subject matter jurisdiction over this case, as Plaintiffs
have failed to exhaust their administrative remedies and seek compensation
for the alleged taking under lowa state inverse condemnation procedures
prior to seeking redress in the federal courts. Finally, assuming this alleged

violation of state law can create federal question jurisdiction, the federal
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court should abstain from exercising jurisdiction as the quéstion of whether a
non-profit private entity performing public services can obtain property
under Iowa’s law of eminent domain is a matter of first impression which is
properly before the Iowa state court in parallel litigation (See City’s
Addendum, pp. 1-15).
STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

In November 2008, the City and the Planning and Zoning
Commission approved a site plan which authorized Shelter House to install
improvements in connection with the construction of a homeless shelter to
be owned and operated by Shelter House, a private non-profit organization
that provides services to Iowa City’s homeless citizens. Defendant Board
had previously granted a special exception for the construction of the shelter
on the same property, which the Iowa Supreme Court recently upheld in

Bontrager Auto Service, Inc., et al v. Jowa City Board of Adjustment, 748

N.W.2d 483 (Towa 2008).

The approved site plan authorized Shelter House to construct a fence,
establish a set back and place other improvements on their property. (App.
pp. 45-48). While preparing this site plan, Shelter House conducted a survey
of their property line and determined that the several of the mobile homes in

the Dahlens’ mobile home park encroached onto the property owned by
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Shelter House (See, Appellants’ Addendum, pp. 11-15)." In short, after
years of litigation between the parties, a dispute over the boundary between
".che respective parties’ property arose. While Shelter Hbuse has initiated a
quiet title action in the Iowa district court to determine ownership of the
disputed property, the Dahlens have initiated actions in both the federal
district court and Iowa‘district court asserting takings claims based on City
approval of the site plan.” (See, Appellants’ Addendum pp. 1-15). With the
exception of their pending Petition for Writ of Certiorari challenging the
Board of Adjustment decision upholdihg the approval of the site plan, each
6f the Dahlens’ actions has been dismissed. (Id.) |

In this appeal, the Dahlens contend that the district court erroneously

dismissed as unripe for review their claims seeking compensatory damages,

' While Mr. McNeil is still a named party to this case, there is no allegation
of how he has been deprived of his property by the Defendants as his
property is adjacent to the site plan that is the subject of this suit. City
therefore contends that the First Amended Complaint fails to sufficiently
-allege the violation of any constitutional rights to form the basis of a §1983
- claim by McNeil. :

? The Dahlens also filed a suit against the lowa City Planning and Zoning
Commission and Shelter House in the Iowa District Court after the
Commission’s approval of the site plan. Pages 1-7 of the City’s Addendum
contain the Iowa District Court ruling dismissing for lack of subject matter
jurisdiction due to failure to exhaust administrative remedies. The Dahlens
have appealed this decision to the Iowa Supreme Court (City’s Addendum p.

8).
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declaratory relief, injunctive relief and attorney’s fees for the alleged taking
under 42 U.S.C. §1983. The Dahlens contend that they are not required to
pursue state law remedies for inverse condemnation prior to invoking federal
jurisdiction as the limitations on eminent domain in Iowa state statute serve
tb prevent the taki.ng they have suffered in the first instance. For the reasons
that fbllow, the Board, City and Commission urge that the dismissal by the
district court be upheld (hereinafter “City” for brevity). |
L THE DISTRICT COURT CORRECTLY DISMISSED

PLAINTIFFS’ FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR LACK
OF FEDERAL SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION.

A.  Plaintiffs’ First Amended Complaint failed to plead a basis -

for federal jurisdiction, a violation of the lowa state
constitution or a violation of lowa state law of eminent
domain (Iowa Code Chapter 6A) and this issue is being

raised for the first time on appeal.
First, while a seemingly minor point, it is important to note that
Plaintiffs’ First Amended Complaint does not state the basis for their
assertion of federal subject matter jurisdiction. See, Fed. R. Civ. P. 8(a)(1).

(complaint, App. pp. 42-44; Ruling, fn. 2, App. p. 90). Failure to plead

federal jurisdiction is fatal. See, e.g. Dep’t of .Re-c. & Sports of Puerto Rico

v. World Boxing Ass’n, 942 F.2d 84, 90 (1™ Cir. 1991) (instructing district
court to dismiss complaint for want of jurisdiction for failure to plead

subject matter jurisdiction in the complaint). More importantly, Plaintiffs’
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Complaint fails to allege or to plead a violation of Iowa’s constitution or law
of eminent domain (Iowa Code Chapter 6A), which now forms the very crux
of their argument on appeal.

' The general rule is that “[n]ormally, a party may not raise an issue for

the first time on appeal as a basis for reversal.” Seniority Research Group v.

Chrysler Motor Corp., 976 F.2d 1185, 1187 (8th Cir. 1992); see also,

Singleton v. Wulff, 428 U.S. 106, 120 (1976) (“It is the general rule, of

course, that a federal appellate court does not consider an issue not passed

upon below.”); Moad v. Arkansas State Police Department, 111 F.3d 585,

587 (8.th Cir. 1997) (“We have examined the record carefully and we find no
evidence that this issue was ever raised in the district court.... We therefore
decline to consider the issue....”).

As this Court has stated:

The rationale for the rule is twofold. First, the record on appeal
generally would not contain the findings necessary to an
evaluation of the validity of an appellant's arguments. Second,
there is an inherent injustice in allowing an appellant to raise an
issue for the first time on appeal. A litigant should not be
surprised on appeal by a final decision there of issues upon
which they had no opportunity to introduce evidence. A
contrary rule could encourage a party to “sandbag” at the
district court level, only then to play his “ace in the hole” before
the appellate court. |

Stafford _v. Ford Motor Co., 790 F2d 706 (8" Cir. 1986).

While there are exceptions to this general principle, and the appellate
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" court may exercise its discretion to decide newly introduced arguments on

appeal, in this i.nstance, Plaintiffs have so changed their arguments that

neither the district court nor City could have anticipated them. There are no

| findings by the district.coufc on the issue of Iowa Code Chapter 6A and

raising this matter for the first time on appeal is inherently unjust. Thus, the

appellate court should not consider Plaintiffs’ argument regarding lowa

Code Chapter 6A for the first time on appeal and the dismissal of Plaintiffs’
claims should be upheld.

B.  Plaintiffs’ alleged violation of Iowa state law of eminent

- domain (fowa Code Chapter 6A) by and against Iowa

citizens does not create a federal question upon which to

~ premise federal jurisdiction; however, if federal jurisdiction

exists, the alleged taking does not offend the Iowa or federal
constitutions.

Assuming the Dahlens invoke 28 U.S.C. §1343(a)(3) as the basis for
federal subject matter jurisdiction over their claims, and assuming the
appellate court accepts their argument based on Iowa Code Chapter 6A for
the first time on appeal, the district court’s dismissal of their claims must
still be upheld. 28 U.S.C. §1343(a)(3) provides federal jurisdiction:

To redress the deprivation, under color of any State law, statute,

ordinance, regulation, custom or usage, of any right, privilege

or immunity secured by the Constitution of the United States or

by any Act of Congress providing for equal rights of citizens or

of all persons within the jurisdiction of the United States. 28
U.S.C. §1343(a)(3).
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The Dahlens’ claims are rooted in the contention that they enjoy
ownership over a portion of the property covered by the Shelter House
-special exception and site 'pIan through the Iowa state law principles of
adverse possession, acquiescence and practical boundaries. Such a garden
variety boundary dispute is properly determined by a quiet title action in
[owa state court, which actiqn has been brought by Shelter House (City
Addendum pp. 11-15). As such a dispute between lowa citizens does not
‘involve a question “arising under the Constitution, laws or treaties of the
_United States” this court lacks subject matter jurisdiction under Article III,
§2 of the United States C_onstitut’ioﬁ.

However, as noted by the district court, on a Rule 12(b)(1) facial
~challenge to a complaint, all of the factual allegations concerning
jurisdiction are presumed to Be true and the motion is successful if the
.plaintiff fails to allege an element necessary for subject matter jurisdiction.

Titus v. Sullivan, 4 F.3d 590, 593 (8™ Cir, 1993). Assuming then, that

Plaintiffs have a viable 42 U.S.C. §1983 claim for a government “taking”,
the district court analyzed whether under federal law, said taking was for a
public purpose or whether a “private taking” had occurred. (App., Ruling,
pp. 94-97). This is significant, as a “private taking” would not require

pursuit of state compensation procedures prior to vesting federal jurisdiction
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over the claim. (Appellants’ Addendum, vi, Ruling p. 6). However,. finding
that private takings are rare, the district court correctly determined that

taking private property and giving it to a private non-profit organization for
the purpose of constructing a homeless shelter satisfies the public use
requirements of both the Iowé and federal constitutions. (Ruling, App. 97).
See, [owa Cdde §6A.4(6) (stating that the right to take private property for
public use is conferred upon all cities for public purposes which are |
reasonable and necessary as an incident to the powers and duties conferred
upon cities).

Without citing any authority for their contention, the Dahlens assert
that such a taking does meet the “public purpose” requirements of lowa
Code §6A.22(2)(a)(1)-(5). Again, however, this claim is for a violation of
lowa state law, which, under these facts, fails to implicate federal law or
jurisdiction. Indeed, that is likely why the Dahlens have been unable to
successfully plead the basis for federal jurisdiction. Moreover, as this statute
' wa.s passed by the Iowa legislature in 2006, there is no case law interpreting
samé. Rather, interpretation of these statutory provisions would be a matter
of first impression appropriate for the.Iowa courts rather than. a matter for

interpretation under federal law.
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Shelter House is a non-profit Iowa cdrporation organization that uses
tax dollars, private funds and grants to provide shelter to homeless citizens
in the community. (City’s Addendum, p. 12). The dominant purpose of this
work is clearly public, as recognized by exemptions granted by both Iowa
and federal taxation laws. (See, Iowa Code §427.1(8) and Internal Revenue
Code §501(c)(3)). By virtue of their community works and non-profit
status, there will be a “pﬁblic trust” impressed upon the Shelter House
property, as the corporation is performing charitable works and no profit
may inure to any of the corporate officers. Moreover, it is the very type of
use contemplated by lowa Code §6A.22(2)(a)(3), which defines “public use,
public purpose or public improvement” as a “private use that is incidental to

»

the public use of the property. . .” The fact that the private non-profit
organization is the owner of the property is incidental to the clearly
recognized vital public purpose of sheltering horheless citizens. As noted by
the district court, Iowa courts have broadly interpreted the state
constitution’s “public purpose” réquirement, and it is not essential that the
entire community or even any considerable portion of it directly enjoy or

participate in the improvement in order to make its use a public one.

Simpson v. Low-rent Housing of Mt. Ayr, 224 N.W.2d 624, 629-30 (Iowa

1974). Assuming the alleged taking, the district court held that the taking
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did not offend either the U.S. or [owa constitutions. (Ruling, App. pp. 94-

97).
C.  Plaintiffs failed to exhaust their administrative remedies by
seeking compensation for the alleged taking under lowa

state inverse condemnation procedures as is necessary to
confer federal jurisdiction.

Claims must be ripe for the court to have subject matter jurisdiction

under Article IT1, §2 of the United States Constitution. See, Christopher Lake

Develoﬁment Co. v. St. Louis County, 35 F.?ad 1269, 1272 (8™ Cir. 1994).
The Dahlens’ claim that the City’s site plan approval constitutes a “taking”
based on inverse condemnation is not ripe for review by this court. Itis a
~well-settled principle of law that if a state provides an édequate procedure
for seeking just compensation for “takings”, the federal court is without

authority or jurisdiction to hear the case. See, Koscielski v. City of

Minneapolis, 435 F.3d 898, 903 (8™ Cir. 2006) (quoting Williamson County

Reg’l Planning Comm’n v. Hamilton Bank, 473 U.S. 172, 194-97 (1985)

stating “if a state provides an adequate procedure for seeking just
compensation, the property owner cannot claim a violation of the Just
Compensation Clause until it has used the procedure and been denied just
compensation.”).

The state of Iowa provides an adequate procedure for seeking just

compensation. Kingsway Cathedral v. Iowa Dept. of Transp., 711 N.W.2d 6

10
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(Towa 2006) (stating inverse condemnation is a generic description
applicable to all actions in which a property oWner, in the absence of a
formal condemnation proceeding, seeks to recover from a governmental

entity for the appropriation of his property interest.). See also, Harms v.

City of Sibley, 702 N.W.2d 91 (Jowa 2005) (inverse condemnation case).

For a case against a government entity to be ripe, a plaintiff must obtain a

final decision from the government entity. See, Williamson County

Regional Planning Commission v. Hamilton Bank, 473 U.S. 172, 192

| (1985); lowa Coal Mining Co. v. Monroe County, 555 N.W.2d 418, 434

(Iowa 1996). Next, a party bringing a takings claim must exhaust all
available procedures for seeking compensation from the governmental
entity. Williamson, 473 U.S 195, n.13 (1985).

The City concedes that the Dahlens have now obtained a final
decision on their challenge to the site plan approval from the Iowa City
Board of Adjustment, which is on appeal in the lowa District Court (City’s
- Addendum, pp. 9-10).> However, the City contends that the Dahlens must

avail themselves of available state law remedies prior to seeking federal

* Importantly, in their challenge to the Board decision, the Dahlens have
asserted a number of illegalities, including that the approved site plan
included property allegedly owned by the Dahlens and the site plan was
approved without their consent.
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judicial intervention, even when they are seeking injunctive relief to prevent

the taking. See, von Kerssenbrock-Prachsma v. Saunders, 121 F.3d 373 (8"

- Cir. 1997) (finding only federal éonstitutional ground supporting plaintiff’s
claim for injunction is a Fifth Amendment takings clairﬁ, which was not ripe
under Williamson until state claims were pursued). As noted by the district
court, there is a narrow exception to the requirement that a federal court is
barred from considering the merits of a takings claim until a private litigant
exhausts state remedies. If a state’s remedies are inadequate or unavailable,
exhaustion is not required. Williamson, 473 U.S. at 196-197, 105 S. Ct.
3108. However, the claimant bears the “heavy burden” of showing that the

state remedy is inadequate and that the state courts provide less

constitutional protection than the federal courts. See, Cormack v. Settle-

Beshears, 474 F.3d 528, 531 (8" Cir. 2007).

The Dahlens argue that the state law stétutory right of a property
owner to be free from condemnation in cases that violate Iowa Code §6A.22
is a property right giving rise to a cause of action under 42 U.S.C. §1983.
However, while appealing, this contention does not avoid the legal
-requirement that a federal claimant exhaust their state remedies against
entities possessing eﬁzineﬁt domain authority prior to seeking federal judicial

intervention. Id. The Dahlens assert that a claimed violation of lowa Code
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§6A.22 automatically vests jurisdiction with the federal court. See, Clajon

- Production Corp. v. Petera, 70 F.3d 1566, 1575 (10™ Cir. 1995) (finding

claim ripe for review by federal court where it was undisputed that entity
against who takings claim is filed has no power of eminent domain).
HoWever, this reliance is misplaced as it is undisputed that the City has the
power of eminent domain, subject only to those limitations placed on it by
the lowa legislature. The assertion that these state law limitations have been
violated does not automatically create a federal question or federal
jurisdiction. If, after pursuing the remedies available to them in the state
courts, the Dahlens believe they have suffered a federal constitutional
violation, they may then seek redress in the federal courts. Moreover, if, as
the Dahlens contend,'.lowa state law provides greéter protection against
takings than the federal constitution, the sovereign entity establishing those
protections is better positioned and vested with jurisdiction to make that
interpretation.  Therefore, Plaintiffs’ appeal should be denied and the
dismissal of their claims upheld.

D.  Assuming a basis for federal jurisdiction, the federal court
should abstain from exercising jurisdiction in this matter as
it is a matter of first impression and is properly before the
Iowa state court.

Plaintiffs’ have filed a suit for certiorari and declaratory relief against

the Iowa City Planning and Zoning Commission and the Iowa City Board of

13
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Adjustment in the Towa District Court asserting a takings claim, illegality
and requesting equitable relief under Iowa state law and local ordinances.
(City’s Addendum, pp. 8-10). The Younger abstention doctrine states that a
federal court should abstain to avoid duplicative litigation in federal court of

a matter more properly decided in parallel litigation in state court, such as is

the case with local land use disputes. Younger v. Harris, 401 U.S. 37, 91
S.Ct. 746 (1971) Younger abstention is appropriate when (1) the federal
action would disrupt on ongoing state judicial proceeding; (2) which
implicates important state interests and (3) which provides an adequate

opportunity to raise constitutional challenges. See, Cormack v. Settle-

Beshears, 474 F.3d 528, 532 (8™ Cir. 2007) (outlining principles of Younger
abstention doctrine).

The exceptional circumstances contemplated in Younger exist in this
case. There are two cases with identical claims pending against the
Commission and the Board, respectively, in the‘Iowa courts. The claims
involve a case of first impression as to the limitations of e@inent domain
authority under Iowa Code §6A.22. The Dalhens have raised constitutional
”issues in each case. To maintain identical yet separate actions in the federal
and state courts is highly inefficient for the courts, the parties, the witnesses

and the juries, and could result in unnecessary piecemeal litigation as well as

14
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inconsistent results. No action of substantive import or discovery has taken
place in the federal case, apart from the district court’s dismissal. State law
controls the disposition of all issues in this matter, and the state court has
jurisdiction over the real property which is the subject of dispute among the
~parties. The state forum is more than adequate to protect the Dahlens’
interests, and, by filing the pendiﬁg state suits, the Dahlens apparently do not
object to the state court's exercise of jurisdiction over the dispute. Thus, this
court should abstain from exercising jurisdiction in this matter,

© “So long as a possibility of return to federal court remains, a stay
rather than a dismissal is the preferred mode of abstention” Clay Reg’l

Water v. City of Spirit L.ake, Iowa, 193 F. Supp.2d 1129, 1155 (N.D. Iowa

2002). However, where the Court “see[s] no reason for the case to return to

federal court ... dismissal rather than a stay is appropriate.” Capitol Indem.

Corp. v. Haverfield, 218 F.3d 872, 875 n2 (8" Cir. 2000). Assuming

resolution of the state court actions, the City does not see how this case
could return to the federal courts as a justiciable case. Thus, Plaintiffs’

claims should be dismissed.

15
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E. The Rooker-Feldman doctrine applies to bar the Dahlens’
takings claim based on prior state court proceedings
upholding the special exception for the disputed property.

Plaintiffs’ pleadings admit that the same property described in the site
plan was the subject of the special exception granted by Defendant Iowa
City Board of Adjustment in 2004 and addressed by the lowa Supreme

Court in Bontragser Auto Service, Inc., et al v. Iowa City Board of

Adjustment, 748 N.W.2d 483 (lowa 2008) (App. pp- 43, 7). Any claims that
undermine the decision reached in that proceeding are subject to the

'principles of res judicata and the Rooker-Feldman doctrine. Based on the

allegation in the First Amended Complaint that the 2004 special exception
encompassed the same property as the 2008 site plan, it is apparent that the
Dahlens could have, but failed to, challenge the legality of the special
.éxception based on the issue of ownefship during the state éourt proceeding.
The Dahlens’ failure to timely raise the issue does not now preserve the

issue for federal review. District of Columbia Court of Appeals v. Feldman,

460 U.S. 483, n. 16 (1983) (citations omitted).
CONCLUSION
The City respectfully requests that the court uphold the district court
order dismissing the Dahlens’ First Amended Complaint and deny their

‘appeal for the reasons cited herein, with costs assessed to the Plaintiffs.
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MAR 18 2009

IN THE IOWA DISTRICT COURT IN AND FOR JOHNSON COU%‘;\TTORNEY'S OFFICE

Michael Dahlen, et al., )
' -
' ) 3 %
Plaintiffs, ) S E
) No. EQCV070079 2% R L
Vvs. ) 7 | :;; C—;, - i("."\
) RULING 25, -
Iowa City Planning and Zoning ) E- S
Commission and Shelter House, ) = S
| ) EER!
Defendants. ) -

Hearing was held on March 6, 2009 on Defendants’ Pre-Answer Motion to Dismiss.
Appearances were made by Attorney Gregg Geerdes on behalf of Plaintiffs; by Attorney Sara
Hektoen on behalf of Defendant fowa City Planning and Zoning Commission; and Attorney
Anne Daniels on behalf of Defendant Shelter House. Having considered the file, relevant case
law, and written and oral arguments of counsel, the Court hereby enters the following ruling:

FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

Plaintiffs filed a Petition for Certiorari and Declaratory Relief on December 2, 2008.
Plaintiffs state that on November 6, 2008, Defendant lowa City Planning and Zoning
Commission (hereinafter ICPZ) approved a site plan for the construction of a homeless shelter on
certain property located in Johnson County. Plaintiffs contend the actions of ICPZ were illegal
and should be invalidated for the following reasons: ' '

a. The property in question does not have a valid special exception, which is &

, -requirement of city ordinance. _

b. A substantial portion of the property is owned by Plaintiffs Dahlen, who have not

"consented to or joined in the application.

c. The approval of the site plan was unconstitutional for the reason that (1) it
constitutes a taking and invasion of Plaintiffs Dahlens’ property, and (2) violates
due process rights by so doing and by approving a site plan materially different
from the plan submitted with the application for approval and without Plaintiffs
having opportunity for review.

d. An incorrect and iflegal standard of review was used in approving the site plan.

e. ~ The site plan which was approved is materially different from the site plan for
which approval was sought.

f. The project contemplated by the site plan lacks a shelter management plan and

otherwise does not comply with laws and ordinances of lowa City.

Plaintiffs assert the site plan should be declared null and void and invalidated, and any
building permit or development premised or based on the site should be held to be illegal,
enjoined, and ordered removed.

~

(1]
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For Count Il of the Petition, Plaintiffs seek a declaratory judgment. Plaintiffs claim that
in order to legally operate the use contemplated by the site plan, a valid special exception needed
to be obtained from Iowa City’s Board of Adjustment. Plaintiffs also claim that although a
special exception was obtained, it expired and was no longer effective as of the date of the
approval of the site plan. Plaintiffs argue that before any use or development of the property as a
shelter can occur, Defendant Shelter House should be required to obtain a valid special
exception. Plaintiffs contend that the Court should determine whether Shelter House holds a
valid special exception, and the Court should declare that since no valid special exception exists,
the site plan in question and the use proposed by Shelter House are illegal, and any use of
construction commenced without a special exception should be enjoined and ordered removed.

_ On January 13, 2009, ICPZ filed the pending Pre-Answer Motion to Dismiss. Defendant

Shelter House has joined in the Motion. ICPZ contends Plaintiffs’ claims are not ripe for
“adjudication because Plaintiffs have not exhausted their administrative remedies and obtained a

final decision by the governmental body. ICPZ states that under lowa City Ordinance 18-2-3,
after review and approval of a major site plan by the building official or ICPZ, a building permit
~ may be issued. ICPZ further states that Plaintiffs have only recently appealed the issuance of the
building permit under the approved site plan to the Iowa City Board of Adjustment. ICPZ
contends that under lowa Code Chapter 414, a Board of Adjustment has the power to hear
appeals regarding the enforcement of Chapter 414 and an order of an administrative body or
building official enforcing the zoning chapter and its ordinances pursuant to lowa Code §§
414.10, 414.12 and 414.13. ICPZ also contends that a plaintiff must exhaust the administrative
remedies by appealing a decision of the administrative official, in this case the ICPZ, to the
Board of Adjustment prior to seeking judicial intervention. ICPZ, argues that under Iowa Code
§§ 414.10, 414.12 and 414.13, in exercising its authority on appeal, the Board of Adjustment
“may make such order, requirement, decision or determination as ought to be made, and to that
end shall have ail the powers of the officer from whom the appeal is taken.” Iowa Code §
414.13. ICPZ asserts there is an adequate, expedient, and less costly remedy than judicial
intervention, and Plaintiffs must exhaust that remedy prior to seeking judicial review. ICPZ
claims the Court is without subject matter 3ur1sdlct10n to hear this matter, and Plaintiffs’ Petition
must be dismissed.

Plaintiffs resist, arguing that under Iowa City Ordinance 18-2-3, the Board of Adjustment
has no authority to review decisions of ICPZ, which is an independent and separate governing
* body of Iowa City. Plaintiffs contend the proper recourse is by certiorari. Plaintiffs
acknowledge that they have appealed the decision to issue a building permit to the Board of
Adjustment, but Plaintiffs assert this is because under Iowa Code § 414.12(1), the Board reviews
decisions of a building official to issue a building permit. However, argue Plaintiffs, the site
plan in question was approved by ICPZ, not an administrative official. Therefore, Plaintiffs
contend it is proper to challenge a decision of ICPZ by certiorari and to separately appeal the
decision to issue a building permit by appeal to the Board of Adjustment.

ICPZ responds that Shelter House submitted an apphcatlon to the City of lowa City’s
Housing and Inspection Services Department for a major site plan review on August 27, 2008,
" and Housing and Inspection Services Department, the Planning and Community Development
Department, and the Public Works Department review and approve or deny major site plans

[2]
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pursuant to Iowa City Ordinance 18-2-3(A) and (B). ICPZ claims it may perform a major site
plan review in lieu of the City officials’ review where owners of 20% or more of the property
located within 200 feet of the exterior boundaries of the proposed development site so request,
pursuant to lowa City Ordinance 18-2-3(C), which states: “The commission’s scope of review
shall be the same as that of the building official and the department of housing and inspection
services.” ICPZ argues the Commission was not exercising a judicial function in reviewing and
approving the site plan; rather, it was performing an administrative function by standing in the
shoes of the administrative officials. ICPZ contends the failure to appeal the issuance of the
building permit under the approved site plan to the Board of Adjustment prior to filing this action
demonstrates Plaintiffs’ failure to exhaust their administrative remedies, and the Court lacks
jurisdiction to hear this matter.

Plaintiffs filed a Further Response to [CPZ’s Response. Plaintiffs argue that under lowa
City Ordinances 14-7A-2(C) and 14-8C-3, the Board of Adjustment has the power and authonty
to decide appeals which arise from the decisions of “the city manager or designee.” Plaintiffs
assert the decision at issue is not by the city manager or designee, but is by an independent.
board, whose members are appointed by the mayor and approved by the city council pursuant to
Towa City Ordinance 14-7A-1. Plaintiffs contend the Board of Adjustment has no authority to
review the actions of ICPZ, and Plaintiffs were not required t¢ seek review from the Board
before commencing this action. ' '

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
The relevant Iowa City Ordinances provide:

18-2-3—Approval/Denial Process

A. The city shall review and approve, review and approve with conditions, or review
and deny all site plans submitted under this title within twenty one (21) working
days after application, without requiring submission of the plan to the planning
and zoning commission. -

C.  For major site plans, the department of housing and inspection services or those
owners of twenty percent (20%) or more of the property located within two
hundred feet (2007) of the exterior boundaries of the proposed development site
may request a review by the planning and zoning commission. The request must
be in writing and must be filed with the building official within twenty (20) days
of submission of the original application or within twenty (20} days of the posting
requirements set forth in section 18-2-1 of this chapter, whichever is later. When
such a request is received, the planning and zoning commission may review and
approve, review and approve with conditions, or review and deny said plan within
twenty (20) working days of receipt of the written request for planning and zoning
commission review. The commission’s scope of review shall be the same as that
of the building official and the department of housing and inspection services.

L]
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14-7A-2—Board of Adiustment

C. Powers: The board shall have the following powers:

1.

Appeals: To hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is error in
any order, requirement, decision or determination made by the city
manager or designee in the enforcement of this title or of any ordinance
adopted pursuant thereto.

Special Exceptions: To hear and decide applications for special

-exceptions to the terms of this title in accordance with the general and

specific approval criteria set forth in this title and specifically in chapter 4,
article B, “Minor modifications, Variances, Special Exceptions, and
Provisional Uses,” of this title.

Variances: To authorize upon appeal in specific cases such variances
from the terms of this title as will not be contrary to the public interest,
where, owing to special conditions, a literal enforcement of the provisions

- of this title will result in unnecessary hardship and so the spirit of this title
shall be observed and substantial justice done. No variance to the strict

application of any provision of this title shall be granted by the board
unless the applicant demonstrates that all of the approval criteria for
variances set forth in chapter 4, article B, “Minor Modifications,
Variances, Special Exceptions, and Provisional Uses,” of this t1ﬂe have
been met.

14-8C-3—Appeals

A. Initiation of Appeal:

1.

Where it is alleged there is error in any order, requirement, decision, or
determination made by the city manager or designee in the enforcement of
this title or of any ordinance adopted pursuant thereto, any person
aggrieved by such order, requirement, decision, or determination may
appeal same to the board of adjustment.

The city manager or designee shall forthwith transmit to the board all the
papers constituting the record upon which the action appealed from was
taken.

At a public hearing, the board shall review all applicable ev1dence
presented regarding the subject appeal.

In exercising the above mentioned powers, the board of adjustment may,
in conformity with the provisions of this title or ordinances adopted
pursuant thereto, affirm, or upon finding error, reverse or modify, wholly
or partly, the order, requirement, decision, or determination appealed from
and may make such order, requirement, decision or determination as ought
to be made, and to that end, shall have all the powers of the officer from
whom the appeal 1s faken.

Led
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C. Stay of Proceedings: An appeal stays all proceedings in furtherance of the action
appealed from, including, without limitation, the right of the permitiee to proceed
with development or other activities authorized under a building permit, the
issuance of which is a subject of the appeal, unless the city manager or designee
certifies to the board aftér the notice of appeal has been filed that, by reasons of
facts stated in the certificate, a stay would, in the city manager’s or designee’s
opinion, cause imminent peril to life or property. In such case, proceedings or
development shall not be stayed otherwise than by a restraining order, which may
be granted by the board of adjustment or by a court of record and on notice to the
city manager or designee for due cause shown.

The following Jowa Code provisions also are relevant:

Appeals to the board of adjustment may be taken by any person aggrieved or by any
officer, department, board, or bureau of the municipality affected by any decision of the
administrative officer. Such appeal shall be taken within a reasonable time as provided by
the rules of the board by filing with the officer from whom the appeal is taken and with
the board of adjustiment a notice of appeal specifying the grounds thereof. The officer
from whom the appeal is taken shall forthwith fransmit to the board all the papers
const1tut1ng the record upon which the action appealed from was taken.

Towa Code § 414.10 (2009).

The board of adjustment shall have the following powers:

1. To hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is error in any order, requirement,
decision, or determination made by an administrative official in the enforcement of this
chapter or of any ordinance adopted pursuant thereto.

2. To hear and decide special exceptions to the terms of the ordinance upon which such
board is required to pass under such ordinance.

3. To authorize upon appeal in specific cases such variance from the terms of the
ordinance as will not be contrary to the public interest, where owing to special conditions
a literal enforcement of the provisions of the ordinance will resuit in unnecessary
hardship, and so that the spirit of the ordinance shall be observed and substantial justice
done.

Towa Code § 414.12 (2009).

In exercising the above-mentioned powers such board may, in conformity with the
provisions of this chapter, reverse or affirm, wholly or partly, or may modify the order,
requirement, decision, or determination appealed from and may make such order
requirement, decision, or determination as ought to be made, and to that end shall have all
the powers of the officer from whom the appeal is taken. :

Ls]
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Towa Code § 414.13 (2009).

ICPZ cites to the case of Bradshaw v. Bunn Properties, LL C., 2008 WL 2513795 (Towa

App 2008) in support of its argument. In Bradshaw, the Court’s sole issue on appeal was

“whether the district court erred in determining Bradshaw had failed to exhaust her
administrative remedies and granting summary judgment to the defendants.” Id. at *2. “It was
uncontested at hearing that Bradshaw had never sought recourse through the City or the Clive
Board of Adjustment regarding her zoning violation allegations before she filed suit in district
court. Although the parties continuously refer to this issue as one concerning subject matter
jurisdiction, that is a misstatement.” Id. “The district court always has subject matter
jurisdiction over a case such as this, only certain things may prevent the court having authority at -
a particular time to hear a case.” Id. :

“The statute establishing Bradshaw's duty to seek administrative remedy in this zoning
~ dispute is Iowa Code section 414.10 (2005), which states:

Appeals to the board of adjustment may be taken by any person aggrieved ... by any
decision of the administrative officer. Such appeal shall be taken within a reasonable
. time as provided by the rules of the board by filing with the officer from whom the
- appeal is taken and with the board of adjustment a notice of appeal specﬂ:ymg the
grounds thereof.
Id.

“We agree with the district court that Bradshaw simply filed her petition secking redress
wﬁh the district court too early.” Id. at *3. “She failed to undertake her duty to adequately
exhaust administrative remedies for her zoning violation concerns with the appropriate City
entities.” Id. “In fact, it appears the City was possibly still in the process of conducting its
approval of the Bunn Properties site plans and construction until October 2006 when the
certificate of occupancy was finally issued.” Id. “Therefore, the district court lacked authority to
entertain this matter at the time it was presented with Bradshaw's petition, and the defendants are
entitled to judgment as a matter of law.” Id.

The Court concludes that, when Iowa City Ordinance 18-2-3 and Iowa Code Chapter 414

are read in conjunction with one another, Plaintiffs are required to exhaust the administrative
remedy available to them through the Board of Adjustment. In approving the site plan for
Shelter House, ICPZ was not exercising a judicial function, but was acting with a scope of
review that was the same as that of “the building official and the department of housing and
inspection services.” See, Jowa City Ordinance 18-2-3(C). This action does not eliminate the
requirement that Plaintiffs exhaust their administrative remedies by appealing to the Board of
Adjustment. Because Plaintiffs have not allowed the appeal to the Board of Adjustment to run
its course, this Court does not have jurisdiction to consider the merits of Plaintiffs’ claim.
Plaintiffs’ Petition should be dismissed.

Lo |
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RULING

with the dismissal are assessed to Plaintiffs.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ Petition is dismissed. C
Clerk to notify.

osts associated
. . . L_
Dated this_f{{a" day of March, 2009
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- IN THE IOWA DISTRICT COURT FOR JOHNSON COUNTY

MICHAEL DAHLEN, JANET DAHLEN,
AND MICHAEL A. MCNIEL,
Plaintiffs,

IOWA CITY PLANNING AND ZONING
COMMISSION AND SHELTER HOUSE
Defendants.

NO. EQCV070079

| RECELY gy, By
NOTICE OF APPEAL APR 14 2304
TY ATToRNg,

S OFFice

TO: Defendants Jowa City Planning and Zoning Comm_ission and Shelter House, and

‘ Clerk of Iowa Supreme Court.

Plaintiffs Michael Dahlen, Janet Dahlen, and Michael McNiel hereby appeal to

the Supreme Court of Iowa from the ruling entered in this case on the 17" day of March,

2009, and from all adverse inte_rlocﬁtory rulings and orders inhering therein and/or

entered prior thereto.

Dated this j day of April, 2009.

Respectfullf? ubmi/tgl,//
BY: - (ewsd '

GREGG GEERDES (470-70-0831)
Dey Building _
105 Iowa Avenue, Suite 234

Towa City, Iowa 52240

(319) 341-3304 Telephone
(319) 341-3306 Fax

ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFFES

CC: Tim Krumm
Anne Daniels
Meardon, Sueppel &
Downer P.L.C.
122 South Lipn Street
lowa City, 1A 52240-1802

Sarahk Holecek

First Assistant City Attorney
410 East Washington

Towa City, IA 52240

. CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
The undersigned hereby certifies that a true copy of the
foregoing instrument was served upon each of the
attorneys of record of all parties to the above-entitled
cause by enclosing the same in an envelope addressed to
each such attorney at his respective address as disclosed
by the pleadings of record herein, with postage fully paid,
and by depositing said envelope in a United States Post
Office deposifory in Jowa City, lowa, on the th {lay of

April, 2009.
é /
[ g .

[
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IN'THE JOWA DISTRICT COURT FOR JOHNSON COUNTY
MICHAEL DAHLEN, JANET DARTEN

Plaintiffs, LAWNO. ¢veveo 70345
V. : PETITION FOR CERTIORARI
IOGWA CITY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
Defendants. , =
COMES NOW Plaintiffs and for their Petition, state as follows: a5 el
1. Plaintiffs are residents and taxpayers of Johnson County, Iow. fﬁ_’z:d ow%_f T
property and pay property taxes in Jowa City, lowa. =7 n; -
2. The real estate which is the subject of this action is described as follows: ?
Lot 1, Block 7, Braverman Center, according to the plat thereof, as™
recorded in Plat Book 8, Page 69, o
Office, Johnson County,

{ the Johnson County Recorder's

Iowa; except therefrom Auditor’s Parcel
aid Lot 1 contains 0.67 a
easements and restrictions of record

cres and is subject to

2003116. The remainder of s

.3

On or about the 26" day of November, 2008, the City of lowa City iésued a
building permit for Shelter House to construct a homeless shelter on the property
described above. '

4. On or about the 5" day of December, 2008, Plaintiff timely filed a notice of

appeal of the issuance of the building permit with Defendant.
5.

On or about J anuary 20, 2008 the Defendant lowa City Board of Adjustment

issued its final decision which denied the appeal of Plaintiffs and which upheld the
issuance of the building permit now at issue

6‘.

The actions of Defendant in approving the issuance of the building permit and

in denying the appeal filed by Plaintiffs were illegal for the following reasons
a. :

Section 14-B-4d-5d in the zoning code requires a shelter management
plan. Shelter House has not submitted such a plan
b.

The site plan fails to comply with the parking requirements of code section
14-5A-4.

C.

The site plan that was approved was not submitted to or approved by the
Appellants, the owners of 2 substantial portion of land included with this site plan

09
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d.  The site plan that was approved was not the site plan that was submitted

by the Shelter House (“Applicant™) and was not made available to Appellants for their
review.

. The special exception granted to Shelter House in July of 2004 was
expited, and therefore a new special exception is necessary.

7. Because of the illegalities set forth above, the action of the Board of
Adjustment should be reversed and the building pemnt issued Defendant Shelter House
should be declared void and illegal. :

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request this court strike down and declare invalid the
building permit issued for the construction of the Shelter House project described above.
Plaintiffs also request the costs of this action.

Respectfully Submitted,

GREGG GEERDES (470-70-0831)
Dey Building
105 Jowa Avenue, Suite 234

Towa City, Towa 52240
(319) 341-3304 (319) 341-3306 fax

ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFFS

T ——ee
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IN THE IOWA DISTRICT COURT FOR JOHNSON COUNTY

SHELTER HOUSE COMMUNITY
SHELTER AND TRANSITION SERVICES,

Plaintiff,

%JBY@O\@?Q(Q 05

VS.

- MICHAEL DAHLEN; JANET DAHLEN;
CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA and ANY
UNKNOWN CLAIMANTS of the following
described real estate in Johnson County,
~ lowa, to-wit:
Lot 1, Block 7, Braverman Center,
according to the plat thereof, as recorded
“in Plat Book 8, Page 69, Plat Records of

- Johnson County, Iowa, except Auditor’s
Parcel 2003116 as shown on Plat of

PETITION TO QUIET TITLE

95
Survey recorded in Book 46, Page 206, ?;,;; -0
‘Plat Records of Johnson County, Iowa , s f_
ey
Beginning at the Northeast comer of Lot g’c_% &
1, Block 7, Braverman Center to lowa 2

City, Towa, according to the plat thereof
recorded in Book 8, Page 69, Plat Records
of Johnson County, lowa; thence
500°26°20”W, along the East line of said
Lot 1, a distance of 159.05 feet to the
- Southeast corner of said Lot 1; thence
589°45°50”W, along the southerly line of
said Lot 1, a distance of 25.00 feet; thence
"N00"26°20”E, 159.35 feet to a point on
the Northerly lien of said Lot 1; thence
589°33°40”E, along said northerly line
25.00 feet to the point of beginning,
containing 0.09 acre (3980 square feet)
and is subject to easements and
restrictions of record,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
) |
- ) P
and described thereon as follows: ) _ o
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Defendants.

Plaintiff states:
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1. Plaintiff Shelter House Community Shelter and Transition Services (“Shelter

House™) is an Towa nonprofit corporation.

2. Defendants Michael Dahlen and Janet Dahlen are residents of lowa City, Johnson

County, Iowa.
3. Defendant City of lowa City, lowa (“Towa City”) is a municipality organized
under the laws of the state of Iowa.
4, Plaintiff is not aware of any unknown élaimants, however, such claimants may
exist and it is Plaintiff’s intention that this quiet title action extinguishes their rights, if any.
5. Shelter House is the record title holder and absolute owner in fee simple of the
following described real estate located in Towa City, Johnson County, lIowa, to wit: '
Lot 1, Block 7, Braverman Center, according to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book
8, Page 69, Plat Records of Johnson County, Iowa, except Auditor’s Parcel 2003116 as
shown on Plat of Survey recorded in Book 46, Page 206, Plat Records of Johnson
County, lowa ; and described thereon as follows: Beginning at the Northeast corner of
Lot 1, Block 7, Braverman Center to lowa City, Jowa, according to the plat thereof
recorded in Book 8, Page 69, Plat Records of Johnson County, Jowa; thence
500°26°20”W, along the East line of said Lot 1, a distance of 159.05 feet to the Southeast
corner of said Lot 1; thence S89°45°50”W, along the southerly line of said Lot 1, a
distance of 25.00 feet; thence NO0°26°20”E, 159.35 feet to a point on the Northerly lien
of said Lot 1; thence S89°33°40”E, along said northerly line 25.00 feet to the point of
beginning, containing 0.09 acre (3980 square feet) and is subject to easements and
restrictions of record
(the “Premises™). See Warranty Deed Attached hereto as Exhibit A.
6. Defendant Iowa City has an interest in the Premises by virtue of a drainage
easement on the south 30 feet thereof.
7. Plaintiff is credibly informed and believes that the Defendants Michael Dahlen
and Janet Dahlen make some claim to the Premises adverse to the title of Shelter House.

8. That said claims are wholly without right, but constitute clouds on the title of

Shelter House which Plaintiff desires to remove.

EX
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9. Plaintiff further states that more than twenty (20) days prior to the date of this
action, Shelter House requested that Defendants Michael Dahlen and Janet Dahlen execute a quit
claim deed to said premises to the Plaintiff and tendered to them $1.25 therefor.

' 10- Said Defendants failed to execute such deed.

11.  Plaintiff is now entitled to attorney fees.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff asks the Court to establish the title and estate tor the real estate
descﬁbed herein to Shelter House, that sajd title be quieted and confirmed with Shelter House as
the absolute title holder in fee Simple, that the Defendants Michael Dahlen and Janet Dahlen and
any unknown claiman‘_[s be forever barred aﬁd estopped from having or claiming any right, title
or interest thereto, and for such other relief as may be just and equitable in -the premises.
Plaintiff further asks for reasonable attorney fees and the costs of this action.”

MEARDON, SUEPPEL & DOWNER P.L.C.

By: /MT/Q’V“
Timothy J. Krumm AT00008972
E-mail: Timk@meardonlaw.com

By: (QJ:?, §W

Anne E. Daniels AT00001960
122 South Linn Street

lowa City, 1A 52240-1802

Telephone: 319/338-9222

Facsimile: 319/338-7250 .

Email: anned@meardonlaw.com

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF

1
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STATE OF IOWA )
' )

: ss:
- COUNTY OF JOHNSON )

1, Christina M. Canganelli, being first duly sworn, state that I am the Director of Shelter
House, that [ have read the foregoing Petition to Quiet Title and the statements contained therein are

true and correct as I v§rily believe.
Y ()

Christina M. Canganelfi

_ On this ‘ sk day of March, 2009, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and
for the State of Iowa, personally appeared Christina M. Canganelli, to me personally known, who
being by me duly sworn, did say that she is the director of Shelter House, an Iowa nonprofit
corporation, and that the instrument was signed on behalf of the Shelter House by authority of
the Board of Directors; and the Director acknowledged the execution of the instrument to be the
~ voluntary act and deed of the nonprofit corporation by it and by the Director voluntarily

%Jﬂbm{\%&g\

N@'tary Pulflic in and for the Stdte of Towa

B, | JENRIFER M. HUGHES

¥ i vlCommission Number 726340
> Myc7mm jon Expires

gor] /13 /2010 .
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E1OWA STATE BAR 1A ] FOR THE LEGAL EFFECT OF THE USE OF
Dt oo T, BAR ASSOCIATION | Timotny J. Keumin 58 # 08972 101G | "Tas Forae, consac voun caren
Doc ID: 019365810001 Tvoe; GEN
Recorded: 12/07/2004 at 12:43:50 FM
Fee Amt: $312.00 Paae t of 1
Revenue Tax: $300.00
Johnsen County Iowa
Kim Painter Countv Recorder
=3822 «866
Pregarer o th \ . ’ - - ]
Infermation _21mothy I Krumm, 122 South Linn Street, lowa City, A, (319) 338-9222 .
~__Indhvidual's Name Street Address City Phone
srar,  Address Tax Statement : Shelter House SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE
&= H 5 . 429 Southgate Avenue FOR RECORDER
. . lowa City, 1A 52240
,Qﬂ“‘o‘ . WARRAN I Y DEED
. (CORPORATEGRANTOR)
For the consideration of One (1)
Dollar{s) and other valyable consideration,
Selzer-Werderitsch Associates, Inc.
a corporation organized and existing under the laws of
does hereby Convey to .
Shelter House Community Shelter and Transition Services
the following described real estate in Johnson - County, lowa:

Lot £, Block 7, Braverman Center, lowa City, lowa, according to the plat thereof recorded in Book 8, Page 69, Plat Records
of Johitson County, lowa, except Auditor's Parcel 2003116 as shown on Plat of Survey recorded in Book 46, Page 206, Plat,
Records of Johnson County, lowa, and described thereon as follows: Beginning at the Northeast comer of Lot 1, Black 7,
Braverman Center to lowa City, lowa, according to the plat thereof recorded in Book 8, Page 69, Plat Records of Johnson
County, lowa; thence S00°26'20"W, along the East line of said Lot 1, a distance of 159.05 feet to the Southeast cormer of
said Lot {; thence S89°45'50"W, along the southerly line of said Lot ], a distance of 25.00 feet; thence NOO®26'20%E, 159.35
feet to a point on the Northerly line of said Lot 1; thence §89°33'40"E, along said northerly line 25.00 feet to the point of
beginning, containing 0.09 acre (3980 square feet) and is subject to easements and restrictions of record.

The Corporation hersby covenants with grantees, and successors in interest, that it holds the real

estate by title in fee simple; that it has geod and lawful authority to sell and convey the real estate; that

" the real estate is free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, except as may be above stated; and #

covenants fo Wartant and Defend the real estate against the lawful claims of alf persons, except as may
be above stated. )

Words and phrases herein, including acknowledgment hereof, shall be construed as in the singular or
piural number, according to the context.

Selzer-Werderitsch Associates, Inc.

Dated_____ 4/3o/ouf By _ 2% Ml Mty

‘ ' Thotnas %, Werderitsch, President Title

By
" Berth Ann Werderitsch, Secreteary Titte
STATE OF 10WA . JOHNSON COUNTY, ss:
On this 30th day of November 2004 befare me, the undersigned, a Notary

Publicin and for said State, perscnally appeared Thomas . Werderitsch
and Berth Ann Werderitsch _t6 me personally known, who being by me
duly sworn, did say that they are the President
and Secretary

. Tespectively, of said corparation;
that {no seal has been procured by the said) ( i itf) corporation that

said instrument was signed Gaﬂd—sealed} on behalf of said corporation by authority of its Board of

Directors; and that the said Thomas F. Werderitsch and
Berth Ann Werderitsch as. such officers, acknowledged the execution
of said nstrument to be the voluntary act and deed of said corporation, by it and by them voluntarily
executed. . 5. }

o HOLOBWUTH tﬂtm, ol Wolapmudte

N Expiras ) Notary Public

© The kowa State Bar Association 2003 104 WARRANTY DEED {CORPORATE GRANTOR)
OWADGCS ¢ - Ravisad January, 2000
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